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a corporation.

NORTH TEXAS SPECIALTY PHYSICIANS® SEPARATE STATEMENT

OF MATERIAL FACTS AS TO WHICH THERE IS NO GENUINE ISSUE



Pursuant to Rule of Practice 3.24(a), Respondent North Texas Specialty Physicians
submits the following statement of material facts as to which there is no genuine issue:

1. Complaint Counsel alleges that NTSP has participated in collusion among its
participating physicians in the “Fort Worth area,” which the Complaint defines as “the Dallas-
Fort Worth metropolitan area, mostly Fort Worth and the ‘Mid Cities.”””!

2. NTSP is involved in both risk contracts and non-risk contracts.

3. The Complaint alleges that “NTSP periodically pollé its participating physicians”
to estimate at what rate levels a majority of the physicians, including those on its risk-capitation
panel (the “Risk Panel”), will likely be interested in non-risk contracts.?

4. NTSP calculates the mean, median, and mode of the Risk Panel physicians’ poll

responses separately for HMO and for PPO types of offers.*

|

! Complaint§ 5. A copy of the Complaint is attached as Exhibit 1.

2 914,
> Seeid. 17 (“NTSP periodically polls its participating physicians, asking each to disclose the minimum fee,
typically stated in terms of a percentage of RBRVS, that he or she would accept in return for the provision of
medical services pursuant to an NTSP-payor agreement.”).

*  Seeid. § 17; Deposition of Karen Van Wagner, November 19, 2003, at 16-19. Copies of the relevant
excerpts from this deposition are attached as Exhibit 2.

5 ; Deposition of Tom Deas, M.D., January
26, 2004, at 37-38; Deposition of Jack McCallum, M.D., at 121-22 & 124; Deposition of Ira Hollander, M.D., at 27-
28; Deposition of Harry Rosenthal, Jr., M.D. (“Rosenthal Deposition™), at 25. Copies of the relevant excerpts from
these depositions are attached as Exhibits 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, respectively.
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9. NTSP’s business model is designed to achieve efficiencies and quality
improvements through clinical integration techniques used primarily on its risk contracts and
then allowing the Risk Panel and other participating physicians to carry over those same

techniques to their non-risk medical care.”

10.

|
(=)

11.  NTSP has no power to bind and does not bind any participating physician or

physician group to a non-risk contract.’

~

Deposition of William Vance, M.D., Volume 1, at 117-118; Deposition of William Vance, M.D., Volume
2, at 287-88. Copies of the relevant excerpts from these depositions are attached as Exhibit 11.

1" Deposition of H.E. Frech, Ph.D. (“Frech Deposition”) at 209. Copies of the relevant excerpts from this
deposition are attached as Exhibit 14.



12.  After NTSP’s board sets the threshold rate levels for its involvement, any' non-risk
offer presented by a payor to NTSP and in which NTSP chooses to become involved as a
contracting party is always then messengered to NTSP’s participating physicians.'?

13.  Each physician or physician group then makes an independent decision whether to

accept or reject the offer.”

14.

|
£y

15.  Complaint Counsel believes that NTSP must messenger every payor offer to its
participating physicians, " regardless of whether or not the offer (1) fits within NTSP’s business
model, (2) creates a risk of noncompliance under Texas law for NTSP or the participating
physicians, (3) creates malpracticé or other exposure for NTSP or the physicians based on
network-design inadequacies, or (4) involves a payor that is financially weak or likely not to pay

promptly.

12 Seeid. at 209,

" Id. at 209; Deposition of Tom Quirk (“Quirk Deposition”) at 54. Copies of the relevant excerpts from Mr.
Quirk’s deposition are attached as Exhibit 15. '

14

' See Exhibit 1 [Complaint] q 11 (stating that messenger model “will not avoid horizontal agreement” if the
messenger “facilitates the physicians’ coordinated responses to contract offers by, for example, electing not to
convey a payor’s offer to them based on the agent’s, or the participants’, opinion on the appropriateness, or lack
thereof, of the offer”); Id. 9 18 (identifying as alleged illegal act or practice NTSP’s statement that it “will not enter
into or otherwise forward to its participating physicians any payor offer that does not satisfy those fee minimums”).
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16.  Complaint Counsel’s economic expert, Dr. H. E. Frech, admits that messengering

is essentially a ministerial task that anyone, including payors, can easily accomplish.'®

17.
-17

18.  Complaint Counsel challenges NTSP’s disclosure to its panel of participating
physicians of the threshold rate levels fqr ﬁon-risk HMO and PPO offers established by NTSP’s
board of directors.'® |

19.

l
Lol

20.

=]

16 Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 89-91.

I
\.

' Exhibit 1 [Complaint] § 17 (“NTSP then reports these measures back to its participating physicians,
confirming to the participating physicians that these averages will constitute the minimum fee that NTSP will
entertain as the basis for any contract with a payor.”).

19

|

2 ; Deposition of Dave Roberts at 44-48;
Deposition of Mark Collins, M.D. (“Collins Deposition”) at 6-9. Copies of the relevant excerpts from these
depositions are attached as Exhibits 19, 20, and 21, respectively.
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21.  One of MSM’s former executives is currently serving a prison term for some of

that malfeasance.?!

o
2. I
L

24.  Dr. Frech admits that he knows of no evidence that any physician has ever
colluded with anyone else or has ever refused to entertain any payor offer which was tendered to
him or her directly by a payor or through another IPA.2*

25.  Complaint Counsel claims that NTSP’s conduct is unlawful only under a per se or
truncated rule-of-reason analysis.?

26.  Complaint Counsel alleges that NTSP’s conduct should be judged as per se
unlawful because “this adjudicative proceeding is about horizontal price fixing, among other

things.?¢

2! Press Release, United States Department of Justice, Former Accounting Manager for City of Grand Prairie

Sentenced to 8 Years (Nov. 12, 2003), available at http://www.usdoj.gov/usao/txn/PressRel03/miller sen pr.html,

A copy of this document is attached as Exhibit 22.

2 Exhibit 19 [Jagmin Deposition] at 74:
2 I
Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 75-76, 80, 97, 155, 209.

¥ Complaint Counsel’s Response and Objections to North Texas Specialty Physicians’ First Request for

' Admissions to Complaint Counsel at 3 (“Complaint Counsel admits that it claims that the conduct of NTSP is per se

unlawful. Complaint Counsel avers that, in the alternative, the conduct of NTSP is unlawful under a truncated rule
of reason analysis.”). A copy of this document is attached as Exhibit 24.
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27.

Complaint Counsel, after having been ordered to respond to contention

interrogatories, admits that there is no direct evidence of any agreement between NTSP and a

participating physician to reject a payor offer based on price or any other competitively

significant term.?’

28.

Dr. Frech admits that he cannot identify any specific evidence showing that any of

the following things occurred:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

* one or more participating physicians agreed with each other to reject a non-risk

payor offer;?

any participating physician and any other entity agreed to reject a noﬂ-risk payor
offer;? \

any participating physician rejected a non-risk payor offer based on a power of
attorney granted to NTSP;*

ahy participating physician refused to negotiate with a payor prior to a non-risk
offer being messengered by NTSP;?!

any participating physician knew what another physician was going to do in

response to a non-risk payor offer;*?

27

28

29

30

31

32

Complaint Counsel’s Second Supplemental Responses to Respondent’s First Set of Interrogatories at 1-2
(“Complaint Counsel is not aware of communications between NTSP and any other person or entity taking the form
of an express request by NTSP that a physician reject a specific payor offer, to which any physician expressly
replied, “I agree to reject this offer.”). A copy of this document is attached as Exhibit 25. '

. 3
Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 75-76.

Id

1d. at 80.

Id. at 75-76.

Id. at 155,



® any participating physician gave NTSP the right to bind him or her to any non-risk
payor offer;*® or
(2) any participating physician gave up his or her right to independently accept or

reject a non-risk payor offer.>

[y
o

| ,

30.  NTSP’s participating physicians do not rely on the mean/median/mode Qf NTSP’s
aggregated poll results and make their own independent decisions whether to accept an offer
individually,* and, in some cases, accept offers below the rates established by NTSP’s board.”’

31.  Dr. Frech testiﬁed that the response rate for the poll was very poor; only a small
percentage (in some cases less than 10%) of the participating physicians respond at the rates that

are actually used as thresholds by NTSP’s board.*®

¥ Id. at209.

¥

3% Exhibit 7 [Rosenthal Deposition] at 24; Deposition of John Johnson, M.D. (“Johnson Deposition™) at 25-
26, 30; Exhibit 21 [Collins Deposition] at 36-37 (free to contract directly or through another IPA). Copies of the
relevant excerpts from Dr. Johnson’s deposition are attached as Exhibit 27.

37

Exhibit 7 [Rosenthal Deposition] at 22-23; Exhibit 27 [Johnson Deposition] at 25, 27.

*  Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 215-16.



32.  Not all participating physicians respond to the poll,*® and many physicians do not
follow their own poll responses.*

33.  Providing only the mean, median, and mode of the poll responses does not tell a
participating physician what any other physician will do with respect to a payor offer.*!

34.  Dr. Frech admits that, assuming there was a conspiracy, NTSP has no effective
method to police compliance.*

35.  Dr. Frech admits that there are many reasons an entity might refuse to deal with
another entity, including legal concerns or even not liking the other entity.**

36.  Dr. Frech admits that the collection and dissemination of market information,
including market prices, can potentially benefit competition.*

37.  Dr. Frech believes that payors conduct surveys and know what other payors are
offering in a given market.*

38.  Dr. Frech admits that physicians commonly look to IPAs to handle discussions
with a payor as to the legal terms of a contract,* and that IPAs save costs by eliminating

multiplicative legal contractual reviews by individual physicians.’

¥ Id at149,215-18
®  Id at82,215-18.
1 Id. at 149, 155.

2 Id. at 81, 237-40.
B Id at92.

“  Id at 155-58.

*  Id. at 156.

% Id. at 80.

7 Seeid. at 167-68 (discussing diseconomies from having each practice group conduct its own contract

review).



39.  Dr. Frech admits that payors usually have to offer a higher price to get a majority
or more of physicians to participate in a contract.®

40.  Higher prices are especially important to attract physicians that are more sought
after and perceived to be of higher quality.*”

41.  Dr. Frech admits that, even where unit costs may be higher in a payor contract,
consumers may benefit because of lower utilization rates by physicians that decrease the total
cost of care.5°

42.  Dr. Frech admits that NTSP generates efficiencies and improves quality of care
thrpugh spillover from its risk contracts to the non-risk contracts that are the subject of this
adjudicative proceeding.”!

| 43.  NTSP’s maintaining continuity of personnel — in this case, the participating

physicians — is important to achieving these efficiencies.*

. I
I

% Id at 182-83.

Y Id. at202.

0 Seeid. at 109.

St Id. at 104-05, 110-17, 240-41.

2 Id. at 104-05.



45, ~ Dr. Frech admits that he has not defined any relevant market.**
46.  Dr. Frech admits that he has not calculated any concentration ratios.”

47.  Dr. Frech admits that, although he has done zip code analysis on physician

practices in other cases, he has not done that type of analysis in this case.*

48.  Dr. Frech admits that he has not performed any type of entry analysis in this
case.”’

49.  Dr. Frech admits that geographic markets tend to become larger the more
specialized the specialty.’

50.  Dr. Frech admits that the existenée of a significant population in eastern Tarrant
County (i.e., the Mid-Cities area) on the border of Dallas County would act to tie Dallas and
Tarrant Counties together.”

s I
____
52.  Dr. Frech admits that there can be significant crossovers of services between

specialties.®!

5% Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 120.

% Id at136.

% See id. at 134 (admitting that he has performed analysis in another lawsuit, but not this one).
7 Id at142.

% Id at 132-33.

¥ Id. at 130-31.

© I

6 Exhibit 14 [Frech Deposition] at 121-25.
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Respectfully submitted,

ry S. C. Huffman
illiam M. Katz, Jr.
Gregory D. Binns

Thompson & Knight L.L.P.
1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 3300
Dallas TX 75201-4693
214.969.1700

214.969.1751 - Fax
gregory.huffman@tklaw.com
william.katz@tklaw.com

| gregory.binns@tklaw.com

Attorneys for North Texas Specialty
Physicians



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Gregory D. Binns, hereby certify that on March 9, 2004, I caused a copy of the
foregoing document to be served upon the following persons:

Michael Bloom (via Federal Express and e-mail)
Senior Counsel

Federal Trade Commission

Northeast Region

One Bowling Green, Suite 318

New York, NY 10004

Barbara Anthony (via certified mail)
Director

Federal Trade Commission
Northeast Region

One Bowling Green, Suite 318

New York, NY 10004

Hon. D. Michael Chappell (2 copies via Federal Express)
Administrative Law Judge

Federal Trade Commission

Room H-104

600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW

Washington, D.C. 20580

Office of the Secretary (original and 2 copies via Federal Express)
Donald S. Clark

Federal Trade Commission

Room H-159

600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW

Washington, D.C. 20580

and by e-mail upon the following: Theodore Zang (tzang@ftc.gov) and Jonathan Platt
(iplatt@ftc.gov). :

Gregory D. Binns

007155 000034 DALLAS 1712367.1
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

)
In the Matter of )
)
North Texas Specialty Physicians, ) -Docket No. 9312
Respondent. )
: )
PROTECTIVE ORDER

GOVERNING DISCOVERY MATERIAL
For the purpose of protecting the interests of the parties and third parties in the above
captioned matter against improper use and disclosure of confidential ix_lformation submitted or
produced in connection with this matter:
| ITISHEREBY ORDERED THAT ihis Protective Order Governing Confidential Material

(“Protective Order”) shall govern the handling of all Discovery Material, as hereafter defined.

DEFINITIONS
1. “Matter” means the matter captioned In the Matter of North Texas Specialty Physicians,
Docket Number 9312, pending before the Federal Trade Commission, and all subsequent

appellate or other review proceedings related thereto.

2. “Commission” or “FTC” means the Federal Trade Commission, or any of its employees,
agents, attorneys, and all other persons acting on its behalf, excluding persons retained as

consultants or experts for purposes of this Matter.

3. “North Texas Specialty Physicians” means North Texas Specialty Physicians, a non-profit




corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of Texas, with

its office principal place of business at 1701 River Run Road, Suite 210, Fort Worth, TX 76107.
4. “Party” means either the FTC or North Texas Specialty Physicians.
5. “Respondent” means North Texas Specialty Physicians.

6. “Outside Counsel” means the law firms that are couﬁsel of record for Respondent in this
Matter and their associated attorneys; or other persons regularly employed by such lz_zw firms,
including legal assistants, clerical staff, and information management personnel and te-mporary.
personnel retained by such law firm(s) to perform legal or clérical duties, or to provide logistical
litigation support with regard to this Matter; provided that any attorney associated with Qutside
Counsel shall not be a director, officer or employee of Respondent. The term Outside Counsel

does not include persons retained as consultants or experts for the purposes of this Matter.

7. “Producing Party” means a Party or Third Party that produced or intends to produce
Confidential Discovery Material to any of the Parties. For purposes of Confidential Discovery
Material of a Third Party that either is in the possession, custody or control of the FTC or has
been produced by the FTC in this Matter, the Producing Party shall mean the Third Party that

. originally prdvided the Confidential Discovery Material to the FTC. The Producing Party shall
also mean the FTC for purposes of any document or material prepared by, or on behalf of the

FTC.

8. “Third Party” means any natural person, partnership, corporation, association, or other

legal entity not named as a party to this Matter and their employees, directors, officers, attorneys




and agents.

9. “Expert/Consultant” means experts or other persons who are retained to assist Complaint

Counsel or Respondent’s counsel in preparation for trial or to give testimony at trial.

10. “Document” méans the complete original or a true, correct and complete copy and any
non-identical copies of any written or graphic matter, no matter how produced, recorded, stored
or reproduced, including, but not limited to, any writing, letter, envelope, telegraph meeting
minﬁte, e-mails, e-mail chains, memorandum, statément, affidavit, declaration, book, record,
survey, map, study, handwritten note, working paper, chart, index; tabulation, graph, tariff, tape,
data sheet, dafa processing card, printout, microfilm, index, computer readable media or other
electronically stored data, appointment book, diary, diary entry, calendar, desk pad, telephone
message slip, note of interview or communication or any other data compilation, including all
drafts of all such documents. “Document” also includes every writing, drawing, graph, chart,
photograph, phono record, tape, compact disk, video tape, and other data compilations from
which information can be obtained, and includes all drafts and all copies of every .such writing or

record that contain any commentary, notes, or marking whatsoever not appearing on the original. -

11. “Discovery Material” includes without limitation deposition testimony, deposition exhibits,
interrogatory responses, admissions, affidavits, declarations, documents produced pursuant to
compulsory process or voluntarily in lieu thereof, and any other documents or information
produced or given to one Party by another Party or by a Third Party in connection with discovery

in this Matter.




12. “Confidential Discovery Material” means all Discovery Material that is designated bya
Producing Party as confidential and that is covered by S'ec_tion 6(f) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 46(f), and Commission Rule of fractice §4.10(a)(2), 16 CF.R. §

-4.10(2)(2); or Section 26(c)(7) of the F ederal Rules of Civil Procedure and precedents thereunder.
Confidential Discovery Material shall include non-public commercial info-rmation, the disclosure
of which to Respondent or Third Parties would cause ‘substantial commercial harm or personal

- embarrassment to the disclosing party. The follo\ying is 2 nonexhaustive list of examples of
information that likely will qualify for treatment as Confidential biscovew Material: strategic
plans (involving pricing, marketing, research and development, product roadmaps, corporate
alliances, or mergers and acquisitions) that have not been fully implemented or revealed to the
public; trade secrets; customer-specific evaluations or data (e.g., prices, volumes, or revenues);
personnel files and evaluations; information subject to cénﬁdentiality or non-disclosure
agreements; propn"etary technical or engineering information; proprietary financial data or
projections; and proprietary consumer, customer or market research or analyses applicable to
current or firture market conditions, the disclosure of which could reveal Confidential Discovery

Material.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROTECTIVE ORDER
1. Discovery Material, or information derived therefrom, shall be used solely by the Parties

for purposes of this Matter, and shall not be used for any other purpose, including without
limitation any business or commercial purpose, except that with notice to the Producing Party, a
Party may apply to the Administrative Law Judge for approval of the use or disclosure of any

Discovery Material, or information derived therefrom, for any other proceeding. Provided,
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however, that in the event that the Party seeking to use Discovery Material in any other
proceeding is gfanted leave to do so by the Administrative Law Judge, it will be required to take

_ appropriate steps to preserve the confidentiality of such material. Additionally, in's-uch event, the
Commission.may only use or disclose Discovery Material as provided by (1) its Rules of Practice, '
Sections 6(f) and 21 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and any cases so construing them; and
(2) any other legal obligation imposed upon the Commission. The Parties, in conducting
discovery from Third Parties,h shall attach to such discovery requests a copy of this Protective

Order and a cover letter that will apprise such Third Parties of their rights hereunder. -

2. This paragraph concerns the designation of material as “Confidential” and “Restricted

Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only.”
(@ Designation of Documents as CONFIDENTIAL - FTC Docket No. 9312.

Discovery Material may be designated as Confidential Discovery Material by Producing
Parties by placing on or affixing, in such manner as will not interfere with the legibility thereof, the
notation “CONFIDENTIAL - FTC Docket No. 9312” (or other similar notation containing a
reference to this Matter) to the first page of a document containing such Confidential Discovery
Material, or, by Parties bs' instructing the court reporter to denote each page of a transcript
containing such Confidential Discovery Material as “Confidential.” Sucil designations shall be
made within fourteen days from the initial production or deposition and constitute a good-faith
representation by counsel for the Party or Third Party maki‘ng the designations that the document

constitutes or contains “Confidential Discovery Material.”




() Designation of Documents as “RESTRICTED CONFIDENTIAL,

ATTORNEY EYES ONLY - FTC Docket No. 9312.”

In ofder to permit Producing Parties to provide additional protection for a limited number
of documents that contain highly sensitive commercial information, Producing Parties may
designate documents as “Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only, FTC Docket No. 93 12”7 by
placing on or affixing such legend on each page of the document. It is anticipated that documents
to be designated Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only may include certain marketing plans,
sales forecasts, business plans, the financial terms of contracts, operating plans, pricing and co.st
data, price tern.w, analyses of pricing or @mpeﬁﬁon information, and limited proprietary
personnel information; and that this particularly restrictive designation is to be utilized for a

‘limited number of documents. Documents designateci Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes
Only may be disclosed to Outside Counsél, other than an individual attorney related by blood or
marriage to a director, officer, or employee or Respondent; Complaint Counsel; and to
Experts/Consultants (paragraph 4(c), hereof). Such materials may not be disclosed to
Experts/Consultants or to witnesses or deponents at trial or deposition (paragraph 4(d) hereof),
except in accordance with subsection (c) of this paragraph 2. In all other respects, Restricted
Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only material shall be treated as Confidential Discovery Material and
all references in.this Protective Order and in the exhibit hereto to Confidential Discovery Material

shall include documents designated Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only.

(©)  Disclosure of Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only Material To Witnesses

or Deponents at Trial or Deposition.




If any Party desires to disclose Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only material to
witnesses or deponents at trial or deposition, the disclosing Party shall notify the Producing Party
. of its desire to disclose such material. Such notice shall identify the specific individual to whom
the Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only material is to be disclosed. Such identification
shall include, but not be limited to, the full name and professional address aﬁd/or affiliation of the
identi_ﬁed individual. The Producing Party may object to the disclosure of the Restricted
Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only material within five business days of receiving notice of an
intent to disclose the Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only material to an individual by
providing the disclosing Party with a written statement of the reasons for objection. If the
Producing Party timely objects, the disclosing Party shall not disclose the Restricted Confidential,
Attorney Eyes Only material to the identified mdiﬁduaL absent a written agreement with the
Producing Party, order of the Administrative Law Judge or ruling on appeal. The Producing
Party lodging an objection and the disclosing Party shall meet and confer in good faith in an
attempt to determine the terms of disclosure to the identified individual. If at the end of five
business days of negotiating the parties have not resolved their .diﬂ'erences or if counsel determine
in good faith that negotiations have failed, the disclosing Party may make written application to
‘the Administrative Law Judge as provided by paragraph 6(b) of this Protective Order. If the
Producing Party does not object to the disclosure of Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only
matenal to the 1dent1ﬁed individual within ﬁve business days, the dlsclosmg Party may disclose the

Restncted Conﬁdentlal, Attomey Eyes Only material to the identified individual,

@ Disputes Concerning Designation or Disclosﬁre of Restricted Confidential,

Attomey Eyes Only Material.




Disputes concefning the designation or disclosure of Restricted Confidential, Attorney

Eyes Only material shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 6.
(e) No Presumption or Inference.

No presumption or other inference shall be drawn that material designated Restricted

Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only is entitled to the protections of this paragraph.
(®  DueProcess Savings Clause.

Nothing herein shall be used to argue that a Party’s right to attend the trial of, or other
proceedings in, this Matter is affected in any way by the designation of material as Restricted

Contfidential, Attorney Eyes Only.

3. All documents heretofore 6btained by the Commission through con-lpulsory process or
volunta‘.n'ly from any Party or Third Party, regardless of whether designated confidential by the |
Party or Third Party, and transcripts of any ix;vestigational hearings, interviews and depositions,
that were obtained during the pre-complaint stage of this Matter shall be treated as
“Conﬁdentlal,” in accordance with paragraph 2(a) on page five of this Order. Furthermore,
Complamt Counsel shall within five business days of the eﬁ'ectlve date of this Protectlve Order,
provide a copy of this Order to all Parties or Third Parties from whom the Commission obtained
documents during the_ pre-Complaint investigation and shall notify thé_se Parties and Third Pa{ﬁes

that they shall have thirty days from the effective date of this Protective Order to determine

whether their materials qualify for the higher protection of Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes -

Only and to so designate such documents,

sl



4. Confidential Discovery Material shall not, directly or indirectly, be disclosed or otherwise

provided to anyone except to:

€)) Complaint Counsel and the Commission, as permitted by the Commission’s Rules

of Practice;

(b) Outside Counsel, other than an individual attorney related by blood or marriage to

a director, officer, or employee or Respondent;
(© Experts/Consultants (in accordance with paragraph 5 hereto);
@ witnesses or deponents at trial or deposition;
(e) the Administrative Law Judge and personnel assisting him;
® court reporters and deposition transcript reporters;

(2 judges and other court personnel of any court having jurisdiction over any appeal

proceedings involving_ this Matter; and

(h) any author or recipient of the Confidential Discovery Material (as indicated on the.
face of the document, record or material), and any individual who was in the direct chain of

supervision of the author at the time the Confidential Discovery Material was created or received.

5. Confidential Discovery Material, including material designated as “Confidential” and
“Restricted Confidential, Attorney Eyes Only,” shall not, directly or indirectly, be disclosed or

otherwise provided to an Expert/Consultant, unless such Expert/Consultant agrees in writing:

9




@ to maintain such Confidential Discovery Material in locked rooms or locked

cabinet(s) when such Confidential Discovery Material is not being reviewed;

() to return such Confidential Discovery Material to Complaint Counsel or

Respondent’s Outside Counsel, as appropriate, upon the conclusion of the Expert/Consultant’s

assignment or retention or the conclusion of this Matter;

© to not disclose such Confidential Discovery Material to anyone, except as

permitted by the Protective Order; and

(d) to use such Confidential Discovery Material and the information contained therein”
solely for the purpose of rendering consulting services to a Party to this Matter, including

providing testimony in judicial or administrative proceedings arising out of this Matter,

6. This paragraph governs the procedures for the following specified disclosures and

challenges to designations of confidentiality.
(a) Challenges to Confidentiality Designations.

If any Party seeks to challenge a Producing Party’s desiggation of material as Confidential
Discovery Material or any other restriction contained within this Protective Order, the challenging
Party shall notify the Producing Pmt;r and all Parties to this action of the challenge to such
designation. Such notice shall identify with specificity (i.e., by document control numbers,
deposition transcript page and line reference, or other mmeans sufficient to locate easily such

materials) the designation being challenged. The Producing Party may preserve its designation

10




within five busines-s days of receiving notice of the confidentiality challenge by providing the
challenging Party and all Parties to this apﬁon with a Wﬁtten statement of the reasons for the
designation. Ifthe Producing Party timely preserves its rights, the Parties shall continue to treat
the challenged material ag Confidential Discovery Material, absent a written agreement with the
Producing Party or order of the Administrative Law Judge. The Producing Party, preserving its
rights, and the challenging Party shall méet a:nd confer in good faith in an attempt to negotiate
changes to any challenged designation. If at the end of five business days of negotiating the
parties have not resolved their differences or if counsel determine in good faith that negotiations
have failed; the challenging Party may make written application to the Administrative Law Judge
as prc;vided by paragraph 6(b) of this Protective Order. If the Producing Party does not preserve
its rights within five business days, thé challenging Party may alter the designation as contained in
the notice. The challenging Party shall notify the Producing Party and the other Parties to this

action of any changes in confidentiality designations.

Regardless of confidential designation, copies of published magazine or newspaper
articles, excerpts from published books, publicly available tariffs, and public documents filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or other governmental entity may be used by any Party

without reference to the procedures of this subparagraph,
®) Resolution of Disclosure or Confidentiality Disputes.

If negotiations under subparagraph 6(a) of this Protective Order have failed to resolve the
issues, a Party seeking to disclose Confidential Discovery Material or challenging a confidentiality

designation or any other restriction contained within this Protective Order may make written
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application to the Administrative Law Judge for relief. Such application shall be served on the
Producing Party and the other Party, and be accompanied by a certification that the meet and
confer obligations of this paragraph have been met, but that good faith negotiations ilave failed to
resolve outstanding issues. The Producing Party and any other Parties shall have five business
days to respond to the application. While an application is pending, the Parties shall maintain the
pre-application status of the Confidential Discovery Material. Nothing in this Protective Order
shall create a presumption or alter the burden of persuading the Adrﬁinistrative Law Judge of the

proprietary of a requested disclosure or change in designation.

7. Confidential Discovery Material shall not be disclosed to any person described in ‘
subparagraphs 4(c) and 4(d) of this Protecti.ve Order until such person has executed and
transmitted to Respondent’s counsel or Complaint Counsel, as the case may be, a declaration or
declarations, as applicable, in.the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated
herein by reference. Respondent’s counsel and Complaint Counsel shé.ll maintain a file of all such
declarations for the duration of the litigation. Confidential Discovery Material shall not be copied
or reproduced for use in this Matter except to the extent such copying or reproduction is
reasonably necessary to the conduct of this Matter, and all such copies or reproductions shall be
subject to the terms of this Protective Order. If the duplication brocess by which copies or
reproductions of Confidential Discovery Material are made does not preserve the confidentiality
designations that appear on the original documents, all such copies or reproductions shall be

stamped “CONFIDENTIAL — FTC Docket No. 9312.”

8. The Parties shall not be obligat_ed to challenge the propriety of any designation or
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treatment of information as confidential and the failure to do so promptly shall not preclude any
subsequent objection to such designation or treatment, or any motion seeking permission to
disclose such material to ;zers'ons not referred to in paragraph 4. If Confidential Discovery
Material is produced without the legend attached, such document shall be treated as Confidential
from the time the Producing Party advises Cqmplaint Counsel and Respondent’s counsel in
‘writing that such material should be so designated and provides all the Parties with an
appropriately labeled replacement. The Parties shall return promptly or destroy the unmarked

documents.

9. Ifthe FIC: (a) receives a discovery request that may require the discl.osure by it ofa
Third Party’s Confidential Discovery Material; or (b) intends to or is required to disclose,
voluntarily or involuntarily, a Third Party’s Confidential Discovery Material (whether or not such
disclosure is in response to a discovery request), the FTC promptly shall notify the Third Party of
either receipt of such requést or its\ intention to disclose such material. Such notification shall be
in writing and, if not otherwise done, sent for receipt by the Third Pa.ny at least five business days
before production, and shall include a copy of this Protective Order and a cover letter that will

apprise the Third Party of its rights hereunder.

10. If any person receives a discovery request in another proceeding that may require the
- disclosure of a Producing Party’s Confidential Discovery Material, the subpoena recipient
promptly shall notify the Producing Party of receipt of such request. Such notification shall be'in

writing and, if not otherwise done, sent for receipt by the Producing Part at least five business

~ days before production, and shall include a copy of this Protective Order and a cover letter that
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will apprise the Producing Party of its rights hereunder. The Producing Party shall be solely
responsible for asserting any objection to the requested production. Nothing herein shall be

constfued as requiring the subpoena recipient or anyone else covered by this Order to challenge or

‘appeal any such order requiring production of Confidential Discovery Matéﬁal, or to subject itself

to any. penalties for noncompliance with any such order, or to seek any relief from the

Administrative Law Judge or the Commission.

11. This Order governs the disclosure of information during the course of discovery and does
not constitute an in camera order as provided in Section 3.45 of the Commission’s Rules of

Practice, 16 CF.R. § 3.45.

12. Nothing in this Protective Order shall be construed to conflict with the provisions of
Sections 6, 10, and 21 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 46, 50, 57b-2, or with

Rules 3.22, 3.45 or 4.11(b)-(e), 16 CFR. §§ 3.22, 3.45 and 4.11(b)(e)

Any Party or Producing Party may move at any time for in camera treatment of any
Confidential Discovery Material or any portion of the proceedings in this Matter to the extent
necessary for proper disi:osition of the Matter. An ap'plication for in camera treatment must meet
the standards Set forthin 16 C.F.R. § 3.45 and explained in Iz re Dura Lube Corp., 1999 FTC
LEXIS 255 (D_ec. 23, 1999) and In re Hoechst Marion Roussel, Inc., 2000 FTC LEXIS 157

(Nov. 22, 2000) and 2000 FTC LEXIS 138 (Sept. 19, 2000) and must be supported by a

! The right of the Administrative Law Judge, the Commission, and reviewing courts to
disclose information afforded in camera treatment or Confidential Discovery Material, to

. the extent necessary for proper disposition of the proceeding, is specifically reserved
pursuant to Rule 3.45, 16 CF.R. § 3.45.
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declaration or affidavit by a person qualified to explain the nature of the documents.

13. At the conclusion of this Matter, Respondent’s counsel shall return to the Producing
Party, or destroy, all originals and copies of documents and all notes, memoranda, or other papers

containiﬁg Confidential Discovery Material which have not been made part of the public record in

this Matter. Complaint Counsel shall dispose of all documents in accordance with Rule 4.12,

16 CFR. § 4.12.

14. The provisions of this Protective Order, insofar as they restrict the communication and use

" of Confidential Discovery Material shaﬂ, without written permission of the Producing Party or

further order of the Administrative Law Judge hearing this Matter, continue to be binding after

the conclusion of this Matter.

15. This Protective Order shall not apply to the disclosure by a Producing Party or its Counsel

" of such Producing Party’s Confidential Discovery Material to such Producing Party’s employees,

agents, former employees, board members, directors, and officers.

16. The production or disclosure of any Di_sco'very Material made after entry of this Protective
Order which a Producing Party claims was inadvertent and should not have been produced or
disclosed because of a privilege will not automatically be deemed to be a waiver of any privilege
to which the Producing Party would have been entitled had the privileged Discovery Material not
inadvertently been produced or disclosed. In the event of such claimed inadvertent production or

disclosu;e, the following procedures shall be followed:

(@)  The Producing Party may request the return of any such Discovery
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Material within twenty days of discoveripg that it was inadvertently produced or disclosed (or
inadvertently produced or disclosed without redacting the privileged content). A request for the
return of any Discovery Material shall identify the specific Discovery Material and the basis for
a;sserting that the specific Discovery Material (or portions thereof) is subject to the attorney-client
privilege or the work product doctrine and the date of discovery that there had been an

inadvertent production or disclosure.

(b)  IfaProducing Party requests the return, pursuant to this paragraph, of any
such Discovery Material from another Party, the Party to whom the request is made shaﬁ return
immediately to the Producing Party all copies of the Discovery Material within its possession,
custody, or control—including all copies in the possession of experts, consultants, or others to
whom the Discm./ery Material was provided—unless the Party asked to return the Discovery
Material in good faith reasonably believes that the Discovery Material is not privileged. Such
good faith belief shall be based on either (i) a facial review of the Discovery Material, or (ii) the
inadequacy of any explanations provided by the Producing Party, and shall not be based on an
argument that production or disclosure of the Discovery Material waived any privilege. In the
event that only portions of the Discovery Material contain privileged subject matter, the

_ Producing Party shall substitute a redacted version of ’;he Discovery Material at the time of

making the request for the return of the requested Discovery Material.

(c)  Should the Party contesting the request to return the Discovery Material
pursuant to this paragraph decline to return the Discovery Material, the Producing Party seeking

return of the Discovery Material may thereafter move for an order compelling the return of the
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Discovery Material. In any such motion, the Producing Party shall have the burden of showing

that the Discovery Material is privileged and that the production was inadvertent.

17. Entry of the foregoing Protective Order is without prejudice to the right of the Parties or
Third Parties to apply for further protective orders or for modification of any provisions of this

" Protective Order.

ORDERED: o C{iM
- D. Michael Chappe'lf
Administrative Law Judge

Date: October 16, 2003
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

In the Matter of

North Texas Specialty Physicians, Docket No. 9312

Respondent.

L T S N

DECLARATION CONCERNING PROTECTIVE
ORDER GOVERNING DISCOVERY MATERIAL

I, [NAME], hereby declare and certify the following to be true:
1. [Statement of employment]

2. 1have read.the “Protective Order Governing Discovery Material” (“Protective Order”)
issued by Administrative Law Judge D. Michael Chappell on October 16, 2003, in connection
with the above-captioned matter. I understand the restrictions on my use of any Confidential
Discovery Material (as this term is used in the Protective Order) in this action and I agree to abide
by the Protective Order.

3. Tunderstand that the restrictions on my use of such Confidential Discovery Material
inchude:

a. that I will use such Confidential Discovery Material only for the purposes of
preparing for this proceeding, and hearing(s) and any appeal of this proceeding and
for no other purpose;

b. that I will not disclose such Confidential Discovery Material to anyone, except as
permitted by the Protective Order; and

c. that upon the termination of my participation in this proceeding I will promptly
return all Confidential Discovery Material, and all notes, memoranda, or other
papers containing Confidential Discovery Material, to Complamt Counsel or
Respondent’s counsel, as appropriate.




4. Yunderstand that if T am receiving Confidential Discovery Material as an
Expert/Consultant, as that term is defined in this Protective Order, the restrictions on my use of
Confidential Discovery Material also include the duty and obligation:

a. to maintain such Confidential Discovery Material in locked room(s) or locked
cabinet(s) when such Confidential Discovery Material is not being reviewed,

b.  toreturn such Confidential Discovery Material to Complaint Counsel or
Respondent’s Outside Counsel, as appropriate, upon the conclusion of my
assignment or retention; and

C. to use such Confidential Discovery Material and the information contained therein
- solely for the purpose of rendering consulting services to a Party to this Matter,
including providing testimony in judicial or administrative proceedings arising out
of this Matter.

5. .1 am fully aware that, pursuant to Section 3.42(h) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice,

16 CF.R. § 3.42(h), my failure to comply with the terms of the Protective Order may constitute
contempt of the Commission and may subject me to sanctions imposed by the Commission.

Date:

Full Name [Typed or Printed]

Signature
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This Exhibit is not included in the
public version of this document.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA S
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Timothy J. Muris, Chairman
' Mozelle W. Thompson
Orson Swindle
Thomas B. Leary
Pamela Jones Harbour

)

In the Matter of )

R )
NORTH TEXAS ) Docket No. 9312

SPECIALTY PHYSICIANS, ) .

)

a corporation. )

)

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended,. 15 U.S.C.
§ 41 et seq., and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal Trade '
Commission, having reason to believe that North Texas Specialty Physicians has violated Section
5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and it appearing to the Commission that
a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues this Complamt
stating its charges in that respect as follows: ‘ --.»

RESPONDENT

PARAGRAPH 1: Respondent North Texas Specialty Physicians (hereinafter “NTSP”) is a non-
profit corporation, organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of
Texas, with its office and principal place of business at 1701 River Run Road, Suite 210, Dallas,
Texas 76107. .

JURISDICTION

PARAGRAPH 2: NTSP was formed by physicians to facilitate the physicians’ contract_ing with
health insurance firms and other third-party payors (collectively, “payors™) for the provision of
medical services. At all times relevant to this Complaint, participating physicians of NTSP have
been engaged in the busifiess of providing medical care for a fee. Except to the extent that
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competition has been restrained as alleged herein, patticipating physicians of NTSP have been,
and are now, in competition with each other for the-provision of physician services.

PARAGRAPH 3: While NTSP isa memberless corporation under state law, it was founded by,
is controlled by, and carries on business for the pecuniary benefit of its participating physicians.
Accordingly, the participating physicians are “members” of NTSP, and NTSP therefore is a
“corporation,” as those terms are used in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

PARAGRAPH 4: The general business practic&' of NTSP, including the acts and practices
herein alleged, are in or affecting “commerce” as defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44. '

OVERVIEW OF MARKET AND PHYSICIAN COMPETITION

PARAGRAPH 5: NTSP has approximately 600 participating physicians licensed to practice R RO
medicine in the State of Texas who are engaged in the business of providing professional :
services to patients in the Dallas-Fort Worth metropolitan area, mostly in Fort Worth and the
“Mid Cities” (collectively, the “Fort Worth area”). -

PARAGRAPH 6: Physicians often contract with payors to establish the terms and conditions,
including price terms, under which such physicians will render services to the payors’
subscribers. Physicians entering into such contracts often agree to lower compensation to obtain
access to additional patients made available by the payors’ relationship with insureds. These
contracts may reduce payors costs, enable them to lower the price of insurance, and reduce out-
of-pocket medical expenditures by subscribers to the payors’ health insurance plans.

PARAGRAPH 7: Absent agreements among competing physicians on the ‘terms, including
-price, on which they will provide services to subscribers or enrollees in health care plans offered
or provided by payors, competing physicians decide individually whether to enter into contracts
with payors to provide services to their subscribers or enrollees, and what prices they will accept

pursuant to such contracts. ' -

PARAGRAPH 8: Medicare’s Resource Based Relative Value Scale (“RBRVS”) is a system
used by the United States Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services to determine the amount
to pay physicians for the services they render to Medicare patients. The RBRVS approach
provides a method to determine fees for specific services. In general, it is the practice of payors
in the Fort Worth area to make contract offers to individual physicians or groups at a fee level
specified in the RBRVS, plus a markup based on some percentage of that fee (e.g., “110% of
2001 Tarrant County RBRVS™). : :

7
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PARAGRAPH 9: To be competitively marketable in the Fort Worth area, a payor’s health

_ insurance plan must include in its physician network a large number of primary care physicians
and specialists who practice in the Fort Worth area. Many of the primary care physicians and
specialists who practice in the Fort Worth area are participating physicians of NTSP.

PARAGRAPH 10: Competing physicians sometimes use a “messenger” to facilitate the
establishment of contracts between themselves and payors in ways that do not constitute or
facilitate an unlawful agreement on fees and other competitively significant terms. Such an
arrangement, however, will not avoid horizontal agreement if the “messenger” or another agent
negotiates fees and other competitively significant terms on behalf of the participating
physicians, or facilitatés the physicians’ coordinated responses to contract offers by, for example,
electing not to convey a payor’s offer to them based on the agent’s, or the participants’, opinion
on the appropriateness, or lack thereof, of the offer. ) :

'RESTRAINT OF TRADE

PARAGRAPH 11: NTSP’s participating physicians, including the members of its Board of
Directors, constitute numerous discrete economic interests. The conduct of NTSP constitutes
combined or concerted action by its participating physicians. '

PARAGRAPH 12: NTSP, acting as a combination of ;:ompeting physicians, andin
combination with physicians and other physician organizations, has restrained competition
among its participating physicians by, among other things:

A facilitating, negotiating, entering into, and implementing agreemenfs among its
* participating physicians on price and other competitively significant terms;

B.. refusing or threatening to refuse to deal with payors except on collectively agreed-
upon terms; and ' ' :

" C..  negotiating fees and other competitively significant terms in payor contracts for
" NTSP’s participating physicians, and refusing to submit payor offers to
participating physicians unless and until price and other competitively significant
terms conforming to NTSP’s contract standards have. been negotiated.

FORMATION AND OPERATION OF NTSP

PARAGRAPH 13: NTSP was organized in November 1995 as a nonprofit corporation. Its
initial Board of Directors, composed of three participating physicians, was established in NTSP’s
Certificate of Incorporation. Pursuant to NTSP’s By-Laws, successor Board members are elected
from among the participating physicians for three-year terms by the members of each of NTSP’s
sections, which are orgarized by medical specialty. NTSP is funded through fees paid by
physicians on first becoming participating physicians and through its receipt, pursuant to its

3 -
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physician participation agreements, of a stated percentage of the fees paid by payors to
participating physicians pursuant to certain NTSP-payor contracts. NTSP. p-re_s_ently is composed
of approximately 600 physicians, some 130 of whom are primary care physicians..

PARAGRAPH 14: Pursuant to a few of NTSP’s contracts with payors, some of the NTSP

. physicians who participate in the arrangement share financial risk, for example, through the
provision of services at an agreed capitated rate. However, pursuant to the great majority of
NTSP’s contracts with payors, those NTSP physicians who participate in the arrangement do not
share any financial risk, each physician typically receiving a specified fee for-each service
provided. Wheéreas only about one-half of NTSP’s participating physicians—and few if any -
primary care providers—participate in any risk-sharing arrangements, substantially all of NTSP’s
participating physicians participate in some non-risk contracts. With respect to these non-risk
contracts, NTSP often has sought to negotiate for, and often has obtained, higher fees and other
more advantageous terms than its individual physicians could obtain by negotiating individually
‘with payors. '

PARAGRAPH 15: Physicians seeking to participate in NTSP-payor contracts apply for
participating physicianship. A physician becomes a participating physician by entering into a
“North Texas Specialty Physicians Physician Participation Agreement” with NTSP, granting to
NTSP authority to arrange for his or her services to be provided to persons covered by payors
pursuant to agreements between NTSP and the payors. Each physician covenants that he or she -
will forward to NTSP for further handling payor offers the physician receives, and will refrain
from pursuing any such offer until NTSP notifies the physician that it is permanently
discontinuing negotiations with the payor. If, and only if, NTSP approves and enters into an
agreement with a payor, NTSP then forwards the agreement to its participating physicians, who
then may elect to participate (or not) in the payor’s offer.

NISP’S ILLEGAL ACTS AND PRACTICES ..

PARAGRAPH 16: NTSP has engaged in various acts and practices, as more fully described
subsequently, that unlawfully restrain competition among NTSP’s participating physicians.
NTSP has undertaken these acts and practices with the knowledge of its Directors and other
participating physicians, and often at their explicit instruction. -

PARAGRAPH 17: NTSP periodically polls its participating physicians, asking each to disclose
the minimum fee, typically stated in terms of a percentage of RBRVS, that he or she would
accept in return for the provision of medical services pursuant to an NTSP-payor agreement. In
conformity with its agreement with its participating physicians, NTSP then calculates the mean,
median, and mode (“averages™) of minimum acceptable fees reported by its physicians. NTSP
then reports these measures back to its participating physicians, confirming te the participating
physicians that these averages will constitute the minimum fees that NTSP will entertain as the
basis of any contract with a payor. Such interchanges of prospective price information among
otherwise competing physicians reduce price competition among those physicians, and enable the
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participating physicians, acting through NTSP and otherwise, to price their services
interdependently to achieve supra-competitive prices.

PARAGRAPH 18: Sometimes when NTSP begins discussions with a payor regarding a possible
contract for the provision of services by NTSP’s participating physicians, NTSP informs the

~ payor that its physicians have established fee minimums for NTSP-payor agreements, identifies

those fee minimums (the poll averages referred to in the preceding 'Paragmph), and states that
NTSP will'not cnter into or otherwise forward to its participating physicians any payor offer that
does not satisfy those fee minimums. - )

PARAGRAPH 19: In other instances, payors have proposed to NTSP agreements, or.
amendments to existing agreements, for the services of its participating physicians that included
proposed fee schedules that did not satisfy the NTSP physicians’ fec minimums. NTSP has then
advised the payors of NTSP’s established fee minimums and told the payors to resubmit their
proposals with fee schedules that satisfy those minimums, or otherwise actively bargained with
payors as to fees to be paid NTSP’s participating physicians. As aresult, payors sometimes have
either submitted new offers with higher fees or accepted the higher fees pressed on them by
NTSP on behalf of its physicians. '

PARAGRAPH 20: In at least one instance, NTSP, at the explicit dictate of its Directors, sought -
instruction from its participating physicians as to the disposition of a payor offer that already had
been made. NTSP wrote to its participating physicidns, remindinig them of their previously
agreed-to minimums and noting that the specified payor’s offer approximated those minimums as
to some of its medical insurance plans, but fell materially below those minimums as to other
plans. NTSP then asked each of its participating physicians to respond to a poll by indicating the

" minimum fees, again typically stafed_ in terms of a percentage of RBRVS, that he or she would
‘accept in retumn for the provision of medical services to the specific payor’s subscribers. When

NTSP calculated the average minimum fees that its participating physicianswwould accept to
contract with that payor, it found that the participating physicians collectively would not accept
fees lower than the previously established minimums. It then rej ected the payor’s offer and
explicitly refused to forward the offer to any of its participating physicians, whether or not the -
proposed fees were above any given physicians’ stated minimum acceptable fees. Following
refusals by NTSP to forward the proposed contract to its participating physicians and several
communications between NTSP and its participating physicians attacking the payor’s fee
proposal as “below market,” the payor increased its proposed fees to the NTSP fee minimums.
Only then did NTSP enter into a contract with the payor and forward the agreement to its
participating physicians, affording them the option to participate (or not) in the payor’s offer.

PARAGRAPH 21: In addition, while seeking to negotiate fees on behalf of its participating
physicians, NTSP has discouraged and prevented payors and participating physicians from
negotiating directly with one another. In at least one instance, after NTSP fee negotiations with a
payor broke down, NTSP orchestrated the simultaneous withdrawal of NTSP physicians from an
arrangement pursuant to which numerous NTSP participating physicians had provided medical
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services to the payor’s subscribers through another physician organization with which NTSP had
contracted. This increased the pressure on the payor to contract for the services of NTSP’s
participating physicians through NTSP, at higher proposed fees. The payor ultimately yielded to
that pressure and contracted with NTSP and its physicians at increased fee levels.

LACK OF SIGNIFICANT .EFFICIENCIES

PARAGRAPH 22: The acts and practices described in Paragraphs 16 through 21, including
NTSP’s negotiation of fees and other competitively significant terms of contracts under which
each physician is paid on a fee-for-service basis, have not been, and are not, reasonably related to
any efficiency-enhancing integration. With respect to these contracts, NTSP’s participating
physicians do not share substantial financial risk and are not otherwise integrated in ways that
would create the potential for increased quality and reduced cost of medical care that the

* physicians provide to patients. '

ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFECTS
PARAGRAPH 23: NTSP’s acts and practices as described herein have had, or teﬁd to have, the

effect of restraining trade unreasonably and hindering cornpetition in the provision of physician
services in the Fort Worth area in the following ways, among others:-

A price and other forms of competition among NTSP’s participating physicians were
unreasonably restrained; -

B. prices for physician services were increased; and

C. health plans, employers, and individual consumers were deprived of the benefits

- of competition among physicians. W

PARAGRAPH 24: The combination, conspiracy, acts, and practices described above constitute
unfair methods of competition in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act,

15 U.S.C. § 45. Such combination, conspiracy, acts, and practices, or the effects thereof, are
continuing and will continue or recur in the absence of the relief herein requested.

NOTICE

" Notice is hereby given to the Respondent that the sixteenth day of January, 2004, at
10:00 a.m. o'clock, or such later date as determined by an Administrative Law Judge of the
' Federal Trade Commission, is hereby fixed as the time and Federal Trade Commission offices,
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Room 532, Washington, D. C. 20580, as the place when and
where a hearing will be had before an Administrative Law Judge of the Federal Trade
~ Commission, on the charges set forth in this Complaint, at which time and place you will have
the right under the Federal Trade Commission Act to appear and show cause why an Order
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should not be entered requiring you to cease and desist from the violations of law charged in this
Complaint. | :

You are notified that the opportunity is afforded you to file with the Commission an
answer to this Complaint on or before the twentieth (20th) day after service of it upon you. An
. answer in which the allegations of the Complaint are contested shall contain a concise statement
‘of the facts constituting each ground of defense; and specific admission, denial, or explanation of

cach fact alleged in the Complairit or, if you are without knowledge thereof;, a statement to that
effect. Allegations of the Complaint not thus answered shall be deemed to have been admitted.

If you elect not to contest the allegations of fact set forth in the Complaint, the answer
shall consist of a statement that you admit all of the material allegations to be true. Such an
answer shall constitute a waiver of hearings as to the facts alleged in the Complaint, and together
with the Complaint will provide a record basis on which the Administrative Law Judge shall file
an initial decision containing appropriate findings and conclusions and an appropriate Order

disposing of the proceeding. In such answer you may, however, reserve the right to submit
proposed findings and conclusions under Section 3.46 of the Commission's Rules of Practice for
Adjudicative Proceedings and the right to appeal the initial decision to the Commisston under
Section 3.52 of said Rules.

Failure to answer within the time above provided shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of your right to appear and contest the allegations of the Complaint and shall authorize the |
Administrative Law Judge, without further notice to you, to find the facts to be as alleged in the
Complaint and to enter an initial decision containing such findings, appropriate conclusions, and
Order. '

The Administrative Law Judge will schedule an initial prebearing sciieduling conference
to be held not later than 14 days after the last answer is filed by the Respondent. Unless
otherwise directed by the Administrative Law Judge, the scheduling conference and further
proceedings will take place at the Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.,
Room 532, Washington, D. C. 20580. Rule 3.21(a) requires a meéting of the parties’ counsel as
early as practicable before the prehearing scheduling conference, and Rule 3.31(b) obligates
counsel for each party, within 5 days of receiving Respondent’s answer, to make certain initial
disclosures without awaiting a formal discovery request. o
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NOTICE OF CONTEMPLATED RELIEF

Should the Commission concludé from the record developed in any adjudicative

proceeding in this matter that Respondent North Texas Specialty Physicians (“NTSP”) is in
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Comymission Act as alleged in the Complaint, the
Commission may order such relief as is supported by the record and is necessary and appropriate,
including, but not limited to:

1.

An Order to cease and desist from entering into, adhering to, participating in,
maintaining, organizing, implementing, enforcing, or otherwise facilitating any
combination, conspiracy, agreement, or understanding between or among any physicians:
(a) to negotiate on behalf of any physician with any payor; (b) to deal, refuse to deal, or
threaten to refuse to.deal with any payor; (c) regarding any term, condition, or
requirement upon which any physician deals, or is willing to deal, with any payor,
including, but not limited to, price terms; or (d) not to dealindividually with any payor, or
not to deal with any payor through any arrangement other than NTSP. :

An Qfdcr to cease and desist from exchanging or facilitating in any manner the exchange
or transfer of information among physicians concerning any physician’s willingness to
deal with 2 payor, or the terms or conditions, including price terms, on which the
physician is willing to deal. ’

An Order to cease and desist from attempting to engage in any action prohibited by
Paragraphs 1 or 2, above.

- An Order to cease and desist from 'encouraging, suggesting, advising, pressuring,

inducing, or attempting to induce any person to engage in any action‘that would be
prohibited by Paragraphs 1-3, above. ' ’

A requirement that, for a period of five (5) years, NTSP notify the Commission prior to
entering into any arrangement with any physicians under which NTSP would act as a
messenger, or as an agent, on behalf of those physicians.

An Order requiring NTSP.to tenminate, without penalty or charge, and in compliance with
any applicable laws, any contract that it has entered into with any payor since J anuary 1,
1998. : :

An Order to cease and desist from engaging in, attempting to engage 1n, or encouraging
others to engage in illegal horizontal agreements with competitors. - -

Any other provision appropriate to correct or remedy the anticompetitive practices
engaged in by NTSP. ‘ ' ‘
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9. A requirement that NTSP distribute a copy of the Order and Complaint, within thirty (30)
days after the Order becomes final, to: (a) each physician who is participating, or has
participated, in NTSP since January 1, 1998; (b) each officer, director, or manager, and
each cmployee who has or had any responsibility regarding NTSP’s physician networks;
and (c) each payor that NTSP has contacted, or been contacted by, since January 1, 1998,
regarding contracting for the provision of physician services.

10. A requirement that for five (5) years after the Order becomes final, NTSP distribute a
copy of the Order and Complaint, within thirty (30) days of the event triggering this
requirement, to: (a) each newly participating physician in NTSP; (b). each person who -

~ becomes an officer, director, or manager, or an employee who has any responsibility
regarding NTSP’s physician networks; and (c) each payor that NTSP contacts, or is
contactéd by, regarding contracting for the provision of physician services.

11.  Arequirement that for five (5) years after the Order becomes final, NTSP annually
publish a copy of the Order and the Complaint in an official report or newsletter sent to
all physicians who participaie in NTSP, and on any website maintained by or for NTSP,
with such prominence as is given fo regularly featured articles.

12.  Requirements that NTSP file periodic compliance reports with the Commission, notify
the Commission of any changes that may affect compliance obligations, and pennit
~ Commission representatives prompt access to NTSP documents and personnel for the
purpose of determining or securing compliance with this Order.

. WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, the Federal Trade Commission, on
this sixteenth day of September, 2003, issues its Complaint against NTSP.

By the Commission. @M‘ W .
onald’S. Clark _

Secretary

SEAL
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A. In 97, I believe there was one contract
that was presented to the specialists, one
Physician ‘Participation Agreement form.

Q. And was there a different physician
participation form presented to PCPs at that time?

A. Yes -- well, no, I'm sorry. In 97, I
don’'t believe so. If you want to limit your
discussion just to '97 --

Q. Yes, at the moment I do.

A. -- then the answer would be no.

Q. Did PCPs-sign in ’97 the same Physician
Partibipation Agreement és the specialist?

A. They would have if they -- if they wanted
to join the organization.

MR. KATZ: Well, I think he’s asking
you whether they did.

A. Whether they did? The answer is no.

Q. (BY MR. BLOOM) Does that mean that .there
were no physicians in the organ- -- no PCPs in the
organization in spring ’'97?

A. In the spring of ‘97 to the -- to the
best that I can recall, there were no PCP
contracts within NTSP.

Q. Did there come a time when NTSP began to

use a second Physician Participation Agreement?

For The Record, Inc.
Waldorf, Maryland
(301)870-8025



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

. Not in '97.
Did there come a subsequent time?
So we’re talking about something --

Outside of ‘97, beyond '977?

» O » 10 v

All right. We’re now not talking about
r977?

Q. Correct.

A. We had con- -- we -- I'm sorry. Let me
start from scratch here.

If you wished to participate in NTSP
as a physician who was a specialist that had board
represeﬁtation, that was eligible for nominatién
to the board, that would pay a one-time dues
éssessment) it was one contract, and that has not
changed -- or that’s been amended over the years,
but it is still one contract.

| Q. Is that contract used only by those

physicians who have an interest in sharing risk?

A. No.

Q; What is the qualifier for that contract
versus some other?

A. That you wish to particibate in NTSP as a
physician that has -- is eligible to be nominated
for a committee, is eligible to be nominated for a

board position, is eligible to participate in

For The Record, Inc.
Waldorf, Maryland
(301)870-8025
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distributions from account surplus, is a,
quote/quote, fully participating physician, and
there is_a thousand dollar activation fee for that -
type of participation. |

Q. What other contract has been used between
NTSP and its physicians?

A. We call them affiliate contracts, and
there are basically two types. One is at the PCP
level, and it’'s a contract that preﬁty much |
mirrors the base document we were previously
discussing. PCPs take riék with us; and there is
a risk component in that contract. It’s really

what it does not do. It does not qualify the

“physician for participation in the governance of

the organization.

A second document is a contract that
we have with a limited number of our physicians
that allow them to participate in our
fee-for-service contracts. And that would be
similar to the Specialty.Net document you showed
me at the beginning of this depositién. |

Q. What do you call'that contract that
entitles them to participate in fee-for-service
contracts? You’'re looking at the previously

identified by Bates number, NTSP Specialty Net

For The Record, Inc.
Waldorf, Maryland
(301)870-8025
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contract, correct?

A. Right. This is entitled NTSP Physician
Participation Agreement, dash, Specialty Net.

Q. Do you have a generic name for that kind
of contract that you use for physicians inferested
only in fee-for-service contracting and don’t want
to be members paying their thousand a year -- or
excuse me, a thousand once, correct?

A. Once activation fee. They’'re office --
we call them Physician Participation Agreements.

I believe all of them are entitled Physician

Participation Agreements.

Q. Is that the same name that you use for
your physicians that péy the thousand dollars and
have the fuller range of participation? |

A. I'd have to look at the document to.be
absolutely sure.

lQ. When was the first -- let me back up.
Are specialists eligible to sign your
fee-for-seryice Physician Participation Agreement?

A. 1If they do not live in Fort Worth.

Q. ‘If they do not live in Fort Worth?

A. If they do not practice in Fort Worth.

Q. If they do practice in Fort Worth, are

they eligible to sign the fee-for-service

For The Record, Inc.
Waldorf, Maryland
(301)870-8025



10

1
12
13
14
15
16

17

-18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CERTIFICATION OF REPORTER

DOCKET/FILE NUMBER: D09312
CASE TITLE: North Texas Specialty Physicians

HEARING DATE: November 19, 2003

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the transcript
contained herein is a full and accurate transcript
of the notes taken by me at the hearing on the
above cause before the FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION to

the best of my knowledge and belief.
DATED: November 21, 2003

CINNAMON BOYLE, CSR, RPR’

For The Record, Inc.
Waldorf, Maryland
(301)870-8025
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